Layers of impunity

The Supreme Court in the year 2012 while disposing of the appeal filed by the Army had given an option to the army, accused in the killing of five civilians after Chattisinghpora Massacre, to decide within the period of 8 weeks whether the trial would be conducted by the trial court or by court-martial. And in case the option is for court-martial the proceeding should commence immediately and in case the option is for criminal court the CBI shall approach to central govt. for grant of sanction within 4 weeks and the govt. should take the decision within the period of three months. It was a very high profile case in which the litigation was going on. The decision had disappointed the civil society and it was deemed to be the victory of impunity, however after the judgment, the army approached the Chief Judicial Magistrate, Srinagar regarding the option of the trial and they opted for a trial of the accused in an Army court.  The CJM Srinagar complied with their decision and referred all the accompanying documents to be transferred to the competent military authority. In 2014 the army informed the CJM court that they have conducted the assembly of evidence. They claimed that 55 prosecution witnesses were examined including civil, police and army officials and the army has dispassionately examined the witnesses and found that the allegation against the five army officials are baseless and that no prima facie case against the accused persons is made out and the commanding officer after due process of law has dismissed the charges against the accused officials in accordance with the rule 24(1)(c). 

The dismissal of the charge was shocking for the family who had participated in the proceedings initiated by the army. The family approached the CBI designated court for directing the CBI and the army to produce the whole record of the case and further directing Brigadier adjutant headquarter to submit the detailed judgment before this court which they have not done so far so that the family members cannot agitate the matter before the High Court. It was further submitted by the victim families that the army authority couldn’t conduct a trial in accordance with the principals of law. Further also it is a public document and also it ought to have been furnished before the CJM court along with the entire record of the case but the court dismissed saying the applicant has no locus standi and are at liberty to approach the concerned forum and to seek the judgment and therefore no direction can be given, since the effectual proceeding has not been taken place, only where the effectual proceeding are taken place the request can be made. The families of the five people have filed the writ petition before the High Court for quashing the order passed by the CJM and for directing the army to conduct the trial as the army had to conduct the trial under army rule 36 as directed by the Apex court and not the pre-trial proceedings. 

When----------------- investigation of India, which was ordered through the notification to conduct the investigation, the army, had no right to reopen the investigation. The army has betrayed the trust reposed to them by the Supreme Court of India. Even the army is not bothered to furnish the records and the judgment before the CJM court and they have illegally discharged the accused. The family cannot further agitate by virtue of an appeal challenging the summary of the evidence before the armed forces tribunal, it is the diversity of justice the victims have a right to fair trial as held by the Apex court in the West Bengal Committee for democratic rights wherein the court has observed that “court has not only taken into account for enforcement of right of accused but also the rights of victim, fair investigation and fair trial is part of the article 21. The families had preferred to file the petition in High Court for not implementing the order of the Supreme Court. The petition could have been also filed in Supreme Court but it was decided to file it before the High Court in case Supreme Court will ask for first exploring the possibility of moving to High court. The Chattisinghpora case is a case where the judiciary has lost an opportunity to seek accountability for the army personnel for the fake encounters, which triggered worldwide condemnation against the Indian army. What will be the response of judiciary is yet to be seen.

 SADRAKOOT MASSACRE SURVIVORS BLAME POLICE FOR FACILITATING RASHID BILLA’S EVASION
POLICE DISHONORING COURT ORDER: SURVIVORS   

The Informative Missive 	21	March 2016

March 7: Irate by the “deliberate failure” of the police in arresting the Sadrakoot massacre 1996 main perpetrator Rashid Billa, forcing the survivors to move to Srinagar to register protest. Since media is ‘reluctant’ to visit far of villages to report protests, the relatives and survivors of massacre assembled at Srinagar press enclave at Lal Chowk to get their protest registered. The protest was closely monitored by police mainly remained deployed in the press colony. 
Around 15 survivors and relatives of the Sadrakoot massacre victims including women travelled in a bus to Srinagar and assembled at press enclave holding banners in their hands depicting victims and perpetrator Rashid Billa. The survivors lamented police’s casual approach in apprehending the culprit.  The protest was held to mount pressure on the police, which they suspect are facilitating the perpetrator as he enjoyed police higher-ups patronage. Despite the court orders on November 15, 2015, to arrest the accused, there has been, so far, no serious effort from the police to take him into the custody.
	Ghulam Qadir Dar, whose four family members were executed in 1996 massacre, related to The Informative Missive, while pressing for Billa’s arrest during the protest, “It is the non-seriousness of the police that forces us to register our protest in Srinagar. The approach adopted by the police in nabbing Rashid Billa made us doubtful about police’s intensions. We have reliable information that Billa enjoys police higher-ups patronage, otherwise, it is not a big deal for the police to arrest him”. 
	Qadir further said, “The main idea of the police and the perpetrator is to frustrate us, but we are committed not to let him go. This protest is a part of our campaign.”
	The protesters, while demanding the arrest of Rashid Billa set on fire his effigy to express their resentment. The protesters also rubbed with their shoes the banners depicting Billa’s photos. Some of the women protestors turned emotional on seeing the photos of their killed dear ones drawn on one of the banners.    
	As the slogans against the perpetrators grew little louder, the police deployed in the Srinagar press colony, called a protestor Hidayatullah Rashid, 25, whose father was killed in 1996, and instructed him to tone down the slogans.    
Hidayatullah Rashid while talking to The Informative Missive said, “Rashid Billa is continuously threatening us to withdraw the case from the court. He is telling us that nobody can arrest him, as some DIG police is friend of him.”   
	Another protestor Manzoor Ahmad Dar stated, “Now there is court order to arrest Rashid Billa, I don’t understand why police is not getting him. The police lethargy in arresting Billa only implies Billa has some understanding with them.”   
	While recalling the horror, the survivors said they were punished for voting NC instead of Kuka Parray’s Awami League in 1996 elections. “Our only fault was that we voted for NC against the wishes of Rashid Billa who wanted us to vote for Awami League of a dreaded renegade Kuka Parray,” said Manzoor, the survivor.
On October 5, 1996, seven members of three families in Saderkoot-Bala, Bandipora, were killed by government gunmen—Ikhwan—“under the control of the13 Rashtriya Rifles”, camped in Manasbal. FIR no. 125/1996 has to date led to no arrests. This is despite the fact that eye-witnesses have clearly identified the government gunmen responsible for the massacre including “prime accused” Abdul Rashid Parray, alias Rashid Billa.
“On the fateful day, at around 7:30pm, a truck driven by Ghulam Rasool Guroo of Hajin loaded with ‘Ikhwanis’ led by notoriously dreadful renegade Rashid Billa turned up in our village Bunpora,” said one survivor. “He straightaway stormed our houses and fired indiscriminately.”
The survivors said that Billa is still roaming scot-free and comfortably doing job in rural development office in Sumbal.

MAN TORTURED, FATHER KILLED, BROTHER BOOKED UNDER PSA

A well-built structure of around 6 feet tall Shaheen Nazir, a torture survivor, gives out no impression that he was ever tortured. He has seen the worst forms of torture at the hands of different state force agencies. Shaheen’s family has seen worst of times. His father Nazir Ahmad, a Jamaat-e-Islamia, loyalist was arrested by BSF and thrown dead the very next day. The family has to spent years migrating to evade the forces harassment. Not only that Shaheen’s younger brother falsely implicated, booked under PSA, served five years in detention. His mother too was tortured by the Special Operation Group (SOG).
To The Informative Missive Shaheen Nazir of Kanispora, Baramulla made a detailed narration of the trails he and his family has gone thrown over the years. 
On June 23, 1994, at 10:30 am, as usual Nazir Ahmad Lone, Shaheen’s father, left his home to his office situated at Baramulla town. He was working as Section Officer with PDD department. On reaching the Kanispora market, his native market, where his son Shaheen Nazir, 15, along with his friends Javaid Ahmad Wani, 15, son of Mohammad Ramzan Wani of Seer Jagir, Sopore and Nazir Ahmad Dar, 15, son of Ghulam Qadir Dar of Kanispora, Baramulla were already in the market. Suddenly, a BSF gypsy came to screeching halt which got attention of the passersby. Nazir Ahmad was walking on the roadside. The Gypsy did reverse a bit to get closer to Nazir Ahmad. Shaheen, Javaid and Nazir Ahmad were watching from a close distance, as close as they could easily heard the shout of the two BSF soldiers, who jumped out of the Gypsy shouting at Nazir Ahmad calling him “Molvi Sahab stop”. 
These soldiers instructed Nazir Ahmad that their officer, sitting in front of the Gypsy, wants to talk to him. Nazir went to the window and for some 30 seconds was engaged in talking with the officer, which the boys were watching keenly. 
As the friends were watching curiously, the two BSF soldiers hold Nazir Ahmad, by clutching his arms, and pushed him into the Gypsy. In a jiffy he was taken away to Chandsooma, BSF camp, where from the soldiers came. 
The arrest, as was done in broad day light, spread quickly in the area. The news took no time to reach Nazir’s wife Raja Begum, who was at home. She rushed out and met Shaheen and his friends and went together to the camp. They asked the soldier, on guard at the camp gate, they had come for Nazir Ahmad. The soldier told them to wait and then he went in. After couple of minutes, he came back telling Raja Begum and his son that Nazir was not there. They decided to stay outside the camp till the forces admit Nazir’s arrest and ensured his safe release. After a little while, the soldier on guard threatened them to vacate the place. 
Next day morning, around 8:30 am, Nazir’s father Mohammad Ramzan went to the BSF camp with tea for his son, however, he was strictly instructed to return back. Few hours later, about 11:15, a policeman, Ghulam Mohammad Khan, related to Nazir’s family, send a person to inform the family that Nazir Ahmad’s body was lying in the Baramulla police-lines. Thereafter, some people from the locality went to collect the dead body.
Pertinently, before Nazir’s killing, his paternal uncle, Mohammad Maqbool Khan son of Mohi-ud-din of Pathla, Kanispora was arrested by the same BSF unit. During Khan’s 15 day detention period, he was questioned and tortured to provide all the details about Nazir Ahmad and his activities. It seems that the murder was planned in advance.   
Nazir’s body was in bad shape. The body has torture marks all over. It appears that Nazir had died of torture and later bullets were pumped into his corpse to camouflage his torture death. The autopsy report also established torture on Nazir Ahmad’s body and firearm injuries.
Nazir’s family when approached Baramulla police station to file FIR into the killing, however, the SHO Bashir Ahmad Paul / Ganie refused to entertain the complaint. Instead he asked the family to leave. 
It seems that Nazir Ahmad was arrested and killed for his affiliation with Jamaat-e-Islamia. He was active religious activist running a Dharsgha (Quran School) in his locality. Nazir Ahmad, also established by the police verification, has no subversive record. The police investigation / police communiqué from SSP Baramulla to Dy SP, Brammulla also brought to fore that BSF 65 BN stationed at Chadsooma Camp arrested him, and next day his body was recovered. The police investigation also pointed out that Nazir died of an unnatural death. 
Before the family could initiate legal recourse against the perpetrators, Ikwani phenomenon arrived in the area. The BSF was replaced by army at Chadsooma Camp. 
In the same year, Ikhwanis including Abdul Hameed alias Majid and Mohammad Ashraf Chopan, now in police as SPO, in a late evening arrested Shaheen from his home. He was taken to Ikhwan camp at Kanispora, which was just only ½ kilometers away from the Chandsooma Camp. 
Shaheen was tortured, he was beaten with sticks. His head was dipped in bucket full of chilly water with his hands tied. Shaheen was forced to admit that his father had arms in his possession, and he was asked to hand over the same.   In bad shape he was released after some time. Then Shaheen’s younger brother Suhail, then 12, was frequently harassed by the Ikhwanis. 
When there was no let up in Ikhwan harassment, in 1997, the family locked the house and went into different directions to evade the harassment. Now the SOG was after the family. When the SOG failed to find the sons of Nazir Ahmad, in 1999, his wife Raja Begum was picked up, who had taken refuge at her parents’ house. She was slapped, threatened and detained for a day at Baramulla SOG camp. 
In 1999, Shaheen was again arrested from Delina, Baramulla by SOG. He was taken to JIC, Baramulla under the custody of SP Salathia and SHO Parveen Kumar. Both the officials and their men tortured him for 33 consecutive days. 
Shaheen was given electric currents, hung upside down for hours, wooden roller was rolled over his body particularly over his legs. He was made to drink volumes of water, liters of petrol was forced into him mouth to gulp and his head was intermittently suffocated into chilly water bucket.  The torture was so severe that even after 17 years Shaheen was struggling to stand properly on his legs.  
Shaheen’s mother sold her land and secured his release from SOG custody at the cost of Rs. 6 lacks, as demanded by the SOG officials. In 2000, Suhail was arrested and falsely implicated under PSA. Suhail was released after serving five long years in Jail including Udhampur and Baramulla jails.
The family is yet to come to terms as to why after the killing of Nazir Ahmad, there was no let up in state forces harassment. The family is mentally disturbed and never had peace of mind since the killing of its head. Shaheen believes that his father was killed for having sympathies with JEI and also to impart fear in Jamaat cadre seen as sympathizers of militants by the state agencies.  
The only silver-lining for the family so far has that Shaheen was appointed at his father’s place and an ex gratia relief of Rs. 1 lack was sanctioned and given to the family. 

IN GANDERBAL LOCALS ALLEGE CIVILIANS USED AS ‘HUMAN SHIELDS’

Mar 7: Civilians were allegedly used as human shields by the army as the troops were searching for militants Wanihama area of Ganderbal district. 
There was some confusion as to the sequence of events after government forces cordoned off Khimber area in Wanihama locality in Ganderbal on, but some militants reportedly managed to escape from the area.
Acting on information regarding the presence of militants, army and Special Operations Group (SOG) of police cordoned off Khimber, near Hazratbal. The militants opened fire on the search party, triggering a brief exchange of gunfire, official sources said. They said the militants managed to break the cordon and escape. However, no one was injured in the firing.
However, civilians were allegedly used as human shields by the army as the troops were searching for militants. Reports said army and SOG personnel cordoned the house of Ghulam Rasool Mir in Wanihama. The troops reportedly opened indiscriminate aerial fire, creating panic in the area. When the firing stopped, people came out of their houses and protested the ‘unwarranted action’ of the troops. In retaliation, SOG and army men, according to locals, thrashed many people and also ransacked a provision store.
Amid the chaos army men caught hold of a person, Ishfaq Kambay, and forced him to enter a house where they suspected the militants were hiding. However, they did not find anyone inside the house.
“Army caught hold of me and sent me to search the house. I was frightened. As I moved into the kitchen, I found the family sitting in one room. Army let me go when they were satisfied with the search,” media quoted Kambay. But troops reportedly ransacked the house and also broke the window panes of adjoining houses.
In the same area, locals were forced to evacuate children who were stuck in a school when the search operation was going on. “Many children were stuck inside the school near the site where firing took place. Anything could have happened if militants had been present in the area,” said a local resident. Instead of evacuating the children, the troops forced civilians to do the job, he added.

IN 1994 MAN ABDUCTED BY BSF, CHILDREN GROW UP IN WAIT 

March 15: Tireless efforts of Ghulam Mohi-ud-din’s family aimed at locating his whereabouts yield no results. Ghulam Mohi-ud-din’s children had grown up waiting in for their father’s return. They had some sketches of their father’s features imprinted deep in their minds. They had not given up the hope of their father’s return. Even though his daughter Naseema was married off, she often visits her mother to keep the hope of her father’s return alive.  
In 1994, Ghulam Mohi-ud-Din Dar, then 18, son of Ghulam Mohammad Dar of Nooripora, Pattan, Baramulla was abducted by a masked Border Security Forces (BSF) raiding party constituted of 20 personnel. All armed with automatic weapons. Mohi-ud-Din was taken by the BSF men on the plea of leading them in showing the way elsewhere. It was then he was last seen by his family, who helplessly witnessed him being taken away by the forces. 
According to Mohi-ud-Din’s younger brother Ali Mohammad Dar, a siege was laid around their house before the door was banged with knocks. The family was having dinner on the time of the raid. All the family members Mohi-ud-Din’s wife Hajra, his daughter Naseema, 10, his sons Ashiq Hussain,  8, Sajad Hussain, 6 and Ali Mohammad were present in the house.
The unusual evening knock triggered panic in the family members. Ali Mohammad stated to The Informative Missive that, “It was around 8 pm when the door was knocked. I went to open the door. While I was heading towards the door the knocks grew louder. On opening the door, I was shocked to see as many as 20 armed men in combat BSF fatigues. The dark outside made the scene more horrible.  Immediately, I was asked to raise hands and some of the soldiers went in.”  
The gunmen immediately asked Mohi-ud-Din to facilitate them in leading the way to elsewhere. However, Ali Mohammad told the raiding party instead he will help them. It seemed that they had only come for Mohi-ud-Din and insisted only Mohi-ud-Din can go with them. And Mohi-ud-Din was taken away.
Hoping of his return, the family waited keenly for days, and meanwhile, informed their relatives and neighbours about the incident. However, the delay in his return only gave worries to the family. There was no news of him even after twenty-two years elapsed. 
Ali Mohammad said, “I am convinced that the raiding party was of BSF soldiers. Even though their faces were cloaked but the uniform having badges with BSF written over them, the metal helmets and the Hindi accent in which they spoke was enough to reveal their conspicuous identity.”    
On the next day, Ali Mohammad went to police post Hanjiwara, Pattan to report to the police about the abduction of his brother. However, the official on duty, a Sikh, refused to entertain Ali Mohammad’s complaint saying he was unable to do anything in this matter.  
As the situation was hostile then, Ali Mohammad failed to muster the courage to approach the BSF or army camps stationed in Pattan to enquire about his disappeared brother. After two months he went to Police Station Magam to report the disappearance, however, there too he was ignored. 
In 2003, Ali Mohammad approached Association of Parents of Disappeared Persons (APDP) and through which he filed a habeas corpus petition in the High Court of J&K at Srinagar. After the High Court direction to police for filing FIR, Ali Mohammad along with Lumberdar Mohammad Akbar Parra was picked up by the police and was taken to Budgam S.P. office. There both were kept in a room / custody for full day and nothing was either told or asked to them. After that they were taken to Police Station Magam and FIR was lodged. 
When after a month of filing of FIR, Ali Mohammad went to collect the copy of it from Magam police station, to his utter disgust he was asked to pay Rs. 30,000/ by the police. Then he contacted a policeman Mohammad Yousuf Dar living in his village to help him in getting the FIR copy. The policeman wrote a letter to Sub District Police Officer (SDPO) Magam and asked Ali Mohammad to approach the SDPO with the communiqué. Then the SDPO marked on Ali Mohammad’s hand asking him to show it to the same police official who had demanded money from him in lieu of the FIR copy. On showing the note written over his palm he was provided the FIR copy. 
Ghulam Mohi ud Din Dar was an embroider and had nothing to do with militancy or any political dissent group. His abduction and subsequent disappearances has ruined his family’s life.  On time of his arrest he was the only sources of his income to his family comprising of his three minor children. 
Ali Mohammad said, they can’t say with authority whether his brother is alive or dead. “I don’t know exactly what might have happened with my brother. However, there is a hope, a feeling that he may be alive. At the same time, there is another painful feeling that he might have been killed and buried in some nameless grave like many others as years have gone by since he was taken away,” the brother stated.  


YOUTH TORTURED FOR HIS SLAIN FATHER’S AFFILIATION WITH JEI

Ghulam Hassan Parray, a resident of Lavpora, Srinagar has been tortured for his father’s affiliation with Jamaat-i-Islam. Even after his father’s killing by the armed forces, the army and STF keep torturing him asking him to hand over the arms, which he never possessed. He sees the allegations leveled against him by the armed forces were with the sole aim to torture him. He was lucky enough that he survived the frequent torture, which if applied to someone else could have proven fatal. Ghulam Hassan, in mid 30, finds difficult to remain coherent while sharing his torture testimony to The Informative Missive. During narration there were plausible fearful expressions palpable on his face.  
Ghulam Hassan Parray’s father Rashid Parray was killed on 6th November 1995. He was with Jamaat-i-Islami, a religious – political group, seen as militant sympathizer group by the state agencies. In Umarabad, his father was arrested and tortured for seven days. The army asked for an extortion payment of three-and-a-half-lakh rupees for releasing him. The family was not in a position to meet the demand. The army came next day again lowering the extortion money and asked for one-lakh in cash. After two/three days they came again further lowering the amount to twenty-five-thousand rupees. His aunt (mother’s sister) sold her jewellery and gave them the money. The army said that they would release him. His father was brought to the village. He was asked to walk towards his home and when he started walking bullets with pumped into his back. He died on the spot. 
In 1994 Ghulam Hassan Parray was arrested and tortured by army. This was highlighted by the media. He was a student of IX class then. He was tortured to provide his father’s contacts. He said that he was a member of Jamaat which was a religious organization but wasn’t a militant. 
This was followed by torture. He was beaten with iron rods, roller was used on his whole body and he was thrown against the wall due to which he broke his right knee. After media highlighted his case, he was released.
In 1995 when he was preparing for his 11th exams the army came to his house and knocked on the door. His three sisters, two brothers and mother were sleeping. He asked who was there but there was no answer. On the third knock the army responded and he found that his house was cordoned. He was asked to wake up his whole family and sit in one room. The officer asked him to get up and help them in their search of the house. His sister insisted to go with them. But they locked her in a room along with the whole family and took him away to the camp. 
He was beaten with the gun butt as a result of which blood came out of his mouth and he became deaf by one ear. There were six men who were beating him up. He had nothing with him. They beat about pistols, wireless set which according to him was just an excuse for them to torture him. After beatings he was unable to recognize anyone. He asked them to leave him so that he can buy a gun and give it to them as he did not have anything with him. He repeatedly said that he is a student with no connections with militancy or Pakistan or weapons. He said that he had never been to Azad Kashmir or Pakistan and that they are forcing him to take up gun. An army man fired at him but the bullet missed the intended target. 
He was given worm infested food to eat. He was not in a position to even chew or eat anything with his own hands. 
One morning an officer came and asked him to give up whatever he had. He replied that he has his PUC exam books, his land and his house and he is willing to give up everything. Again torture started and due to beatings he fell unconscious for eight/nine hours. Electric shocks were given to him after which he was soaked in water. His head was drowned in water mixed with chillies. The people from his village created a hue and cry about his arrest and blocked the national highway for some five hours. The officer got to know that the situation was getting difficult. He was taken in a jeep and abandoned on the open road. He does not know who came and picked him up and took him to hospital. He stayed in Bone and Joints Hospital at Barzaulla, Srinagar for twenty two days during which he could not move, eat or chew. He was on a liquid diet. After twenty two days he walked on his own. All this happened due to two days of torture.
In 1999 he was picked up again. He used to teach Quran to 97 young boys and girls in a tin shed in the village. After one and a-half-months of opening that school, STF came to his house. He was not there, so his younger brother was picked up. He came to know about it and that the army wanted to ask him something. He went to the SHO and got his brother released and STF cargo got hold of him. He was beaten by his own belt. Then he was taken to a room which only had human bones, flesh and signs of blood. He was told that if he does not speak his condition would become the same. He said that whatever is right would be spoken by him. 
He was hung upside down, his head was drowned in water added with chillies and he was badly beaten up again. He was left after three and a half hours and was asked to give up his gun. The DSP came in the morning and he spoke not about the gun but about his school. He was ordered to close it. The justification given was that the children would end up as “terrorists”. He replied that he teaches about religion and not about terrorism. Still he said that he would close it. But he asked one question that if someone wants to come personally to him at his house and wants to learn what he would do? DSP said that in such cases there is no problem and even till date he teaches his students at his house. 
For the past years army haven’t asked him anything. He mentioned that no one would believe he is the same person. Even today he continues to have pain all over his body and has got intestinal infection as a result of torture. He hasn’t got any relief for his miseries.

ARMY FIRED TWO STUDENTS INJURED
DC ORDERS MAGISTERIAL PROBE

Mar 08: At least two civilians were injured in alleged firing by Army troops in Ashmuqam area of south Kashmir’s Anantnag district.
According to Army, a cordon and search operation was launched in the village (Iram Colony), following inputs about the presence of militants there.
“During the search operation, locals intervened and tried to break cordon and then started pelting stones on troops which resulted in clashes in which two youth sustained injuries,” said an army official of 3RR.
However, locals refuted the army claim, alleging that the troops had “unnecessarily intervened” intervened in a local dispute and subsequently opened fire on people during which two persons were injured, one of them critically.
There is a local “Auqaf dispute” in the village, going on since past two years, which has divided the population here into two groups, locals said.
“One of these groups actually roped in the army so that members of other group could be harassed. And today’s incident is just fallout of that. There was no presence of militants and the only reason for the army coming to the village was their unnecessary meddling in the dispute,” locals alleged.
They alleged that army personnel opened fire “without any provocation” resulting in the injuries to Javaid Ahmad Wani, 22, who was hit by a bullet in the neck, and Amir Ahmad Sheikh, 20, who has been hit in his arm.
Javaid, according to locals, has been shifted to Srinagar for treatment while as Amir was being treated at District Hospital Anantnag.
The incident triggered protests in the area which continued intermittently throughout the day. Meanwhile police has registered a case (FIR no. 12/2016) and started probe.
Deputy Commissioner Anantnag, Muneer-ul-Islam who visited the spot later in the day said that Army has refused that its soldiers opened fire on the protesters.
“We have ordered a judicial inquiry in this regard and have formulated a team led by Additional DC, Ghulam Hassan Sheikh to investigate into the matter within 15 days,” he said.
Meanwhile, senior PDP leader Rafi Mir visited the injured at a Srinagar hospital while as MLA Pahalgam Altaf Ahmad Kaloo condemned the incident and demanded probe.

PIRBAGH MURDER MYSTERY: ‘POLICE TORTURED MY SON, THREATENED TO STRIP HIS MOTHER TO EARN CONFESSION’

March 28: The youngster accused of murdering his ‘friend’ has told his relatives in central jail that police forced him into confession with third degree torture and a warning that his mother would be stripped if he refused to take blame on himself.
The accused has, however, confessed that he had been regularly talking to the murdered youngster.
“I went to meet my son at Central Jail Srinagar. He confessed to me that he would call Owais posing as a girl but categorically said that he did not commit the murder,” Abdul Majeed, father of Ishaan Majeed told Kashmir Reader.
Ishaan was held by police from his relative’s residence in Bandipora on January 14 during the investigation into the murder of an engineering student Owais Bashir, whose body was found from Humhama railway track. Police later claimed that Ishaan was involved in his murder and he had confessed to his crime.
“My son told me that he was forced into confession at Air Cargo camp of police in Srinagar where he was lodged after his arrest from Bandipora,” Majeed said.
“He (Ishaan) has been subjected to third degree torture. He told me that the policemen tied his arms, stretched legs and then gave him electric shocks,” Majeed said adding that during the torture when he screamed his mother’s name in acute pain, they abused the mother.
“We will bring your mother here and keep strip her naked. Then you will see what happens,” Majeed quoted his son as narrating his ordeal. “My son had been forced to accept all the charges,” he said.
Ishaan told his father that police took him to railway station on January 16 where he was threatened to be thrown under the moving train. “This boy is an irritant, throw him on the railway track and let the train crush him. And then we will tell his family that he committed suicide,” Ishaan quoted a senior police officer having told his men at the railway track, according to his father. He said one of the policemen even tried to hit his head with a boulder. “I was video-graphed at the railway track and again taken there on January 18,” Ishaan told his father.
Majeed quoted his son as saying that he a senior officer of the cargo camp warned him against retracting his confession. “Otherwise, we will get a knife from somewhere and say that you have murdered Owais with a knife,” he quoted his son as saying.
Police claimed that Ishaan was impersonating as a girl (Umaira) and talking to Owais on phone. The relationship continued for a year-and-a half until on Owais’s insistence they decided to meet each other on January 12.
Learning that Ishaan was a boy, police said, Owais entered into a scuffle with him that resulted into Owais’s fall on the railway track inflicting a deep wound on the back of his head that eventually caused his death. Two railway constables discovered the body on the track but sensing that they would be held responsible for the act, they dumped the body into a gorge where stray dogs tried to devour it, police claimed.
However, the police claims have discrepancies as per the autopsy report. “Owais’s body had no injury on the back of the head, and no dog bite marks were found on the body,” the autopsy report says adding the boy died due to fatal bleeding and there were torture marks on his body.
Ishan has told his father that he did not meet Owais on January 12 though on the insistence of his sisters he called his number because the sisters were worried on his disappearance. Ishaan also confessed that posing as Umaira he was also talking to Owais’s sisters and they knew their relationship.
Owais’s sister said that she called up Umaira on January 12 when he did not return his home. “Initially Umaira said she was in talking terms with Owais. Then she said that he had asked her to meet him but she did not go because it was late,” she said.
Next day, the family filed missing report at police station Humhama. That day, Owais’s sisters again called Umaira and she told them that she too was trying to track down Owais. At 1 pm, the sisters said, Umaira switched off her phone.
Ishaan corroborates this. “Ishaan told me that Owais called him and asked to meet on the railway track, but I refused because it was late. But when I got a call from Owais’s sisters I called him to ask where he was and his sisters were worried about him,” he said.
On January 13, when Ishaan was in Bandipora to attend a function and Owais’s family was frantically calling to know the whereabouts, he (Ishaan) panicked and broke his SIM card, Majeed said.
“I admit that my son was calling Owais and would play prank with him, but how does it justify that he had murdered Owais. My son is a lean boy and Owais was healthy. How can my son’s one push kill Owais?” he asked.
Owais’s father Bashir Ahmad Malik said that the murderer must be brought to book. “For argument sake, I accept that Ishaan cannot do it. But then who is the culprit. Someone is involved. If the killer is Ishaan, we need more proof to believe it. I couldn’t save my son, but I want his murderers to be arrested and jailed for life.”
Deputy Superintendent of Police, Magam who is part of the investigation team said, “Ishaan voluntarily accepted that he has murdered Owais,” the officer said.
He denied that Ishaan was subjected to torture or was threatened in custody. “Who did this? I don’t know. Whatever we had to say, we have written in the challan,” he said.

JKCCS PRESS RELEASES MARCH
· 
· HIGH COURT GRANTS LAST CHANCE TO INVESTIGATING OFFICER TO ARREST ACCUSED IKHWANI’S
March 22: Justice A.M. Magray of the Jammu and Kashmir High Court questioned investigating officer [SHO, Sumbal Police Station] in FIR no. 125/1996 relating to the 5 October 1996 Sadrakoot massacre. On the last date, the investigating officer had been ordered to appear in person today along with case diaries. The Court was hearing the petition filed by families of the victims of the massacre where seven civilians of three families including women were killed by Ikhwan Abdul Rashid Parray [alias Rashid Billa], Wali Mohammad Mir and Mohammad Ayoub Dar, then working for the army. The State in their last status report had stated that Abdul Rashid Parray and Wali Mohammad Mir were absconding whereas Mohammad Ayoub Dar was working with the 161st Battalion Territorial Army.
The investigating officer informed the court that steps were being taken to effect arrest of the three accused, including by seizure of their property. Further, the Court was informed by Additional Solicitor General, Union of India, that Mohammad Ayoub Dar had been “disembodied” from the Territorial Army on 10 March 2016. In an earlier hearing, Union of India had taken the position that army personnel cannot be arrested by the police. Investigating officer informed the Court that now even Mohammad Ayoub Dar was absconding.
The Court granted the investigating officer a last chance to take effective steps for the arrest of the accused and complete investigations by 16 April 2016.
20 years after the massacre, the efforts of the family members of the victims have put pressure on the State to take serious steps to arrest the accused. Meanwhile, rather than cooperate with investigations, Union of India has effectively facilitated the escape of Mohammad Ayoub Dar.
· IF RADOVAN KARADZIC IS PROSECUTED BY ICTY, FROM JAGMOHAN TO OMAR ABDULLAH, ALL CULPABLE SHOULD BE PROSECUTED
March 25: On 21 March 2016, the International Criminal Court [ICC] convicted Jean-Pierre Bemba Gombo, a Congolese national, for war crimes and crimes against humanity committed by soldiers under his effective control between 2002 and 2003 in the Central African Republic. He is yet to be sentenced. On 24 March 2016, the International Criminal Tribunal for the former Yugoslavia [ICTY] convicted and sentenced [40 years] Radovan Karadzic, President of Republic Srpska and Supreme Commander of the armed forces, for genocide, crimes against humanity and war crimes committed in Bosnia and Herzegovina between 1992 and 1995.
Both judgments re-affirm the internationally recognized principle that it is not only the person who pulls the trigger or physically perpetrates crime that is culpable. Persons in power who control, order, incite, plan, and fail to stop crime, are the true perpetrators of crime, the most responsible, and must be held accountable. With the aid of legal principles such as command responsibility and joint criminal enterprise, the international community has strived to deliver justice for victims of horrific crimes by targeting, investigating and prosecuting the men and women at the top and at the helm of affairs.
In contrast to the movements for justice internationally, the Indian State has worked towards building structures of violence and impunity. In Jammu and Kashmir, 70,000+ killings, 8000+ enforced disappearances, mass torture and sexual violence, a majority committed by the armed forces, has resulted in zero prosecutions of armed forces personnel in civilian courts. A recent report by Jammu Kashmir Coalition of Civil Society, “Structures of Violence: The Indian State in Jammu and Kashmir” documented 333 cases where 972 armed forces personnel are accused of committing serious crimes. Despite evidence, there have been no prosecutions in these cases, as the government through all its institutions is ensuring impunity for the culpable officials.
The reason for this absolute impunity is also due to the fact that many senior officials – political, military and police are individually and collectively responsible for the crimes. Ex-Chief of Police Kuldeep Khoda, Additional DG of Police SM Sahai, Ex-DIG Aashiq Bukhari, Ex-DIG Farooq Khan, Major General Ajay Saxena, Brigadier Deepak Bajaj, Colonel KS Dalal and many more senior officials amongst the Indian armed forces and police have directly been named in relationship to their role in various crimes.
The widespread and the systematic nature of the human rights abuses in Jammu and Kashmir and the absolute impunity granted to the culpable officials, is only possible if the political leadership were themselves involved in directing these crimes or through their acquiescence were allowing the armed forces to carry out the crimes. In any case, the people of Jammu and Kashmir, urge the international community to institute a similar mechanism to investigate the crimes perpetrated institutionally and systematically in Jammu and Kashmir. In any future credible investigation, the role of Governors of Jammu and Kashmir from Jagmohan to N. N. Vohra, Chief Ministers like Farooq Abdullah, Mufti Sayed, Ghulam Nabi Azad and Omar Abdullah and most importantly the people at the helm of affairs of the Indian army and the overall military apparatus, like the Prime Ministers and the Home Ministers of India will definitely come under scrutiny.
· PUDR DEMANDS END TO WITCH-HUNT OF KASHMIRI STUDENTS
Marc 24: Peoples Union for Democratic Rights (PUDR) has expressed its outrage against the harassment and arrest of Kashmiri students in various parts of India and demanded an immediate end to this practice.
 In a statement, PUDR showed its resentment against arrest and surveillance of Kashmiri students in Mewar University, Rajasthan and other Indian states.
 Kashmiri students were attacked by a mob on March 14 this year in Mewar University of Raajasthan when rumours were spread on social networking sites that the inmates of the hostel here were cooking beef. However, it was proved later that the students were cooking mutton and not beef.
“Nevertheless they were charged under Sec 151 CrPC for disrupting peace, kept in a police station overnight and produced before the magistrate on the 16th March. They have alleged that they were made to sign a good conduct undertaking before being released on bail,” PUDR statement added.
 PUDR said that the police has taken no action against the mob that beat up the boys despite activists of the Bajrang Dal openly declaring that they had led the mob. “The only action taken by the police was to register a case against one person under Sec 108 CrPC for circulating a false message,” it said.
 Referring to the surveillance and harassment of Kashmiri students in Kolkatta, PUDR said that there are blatant instances of ethnic profiling which violate the most fundamental rights of freedom and equality.
“The upshot is that Kashmiri students, who come to educational institutions to study (quite often on government programmes), or in search of work, are being systematically hounded and made to live in a climate of fear and insecurity,” the statement added.

KASHMIRI HARASSED OUTSIDE

The violence against Kashmiri community spread across Indian states for educational and business purposes have gone up to alarming levels. Even there were disturbing reports that some of the students pondering suicide if the harassment will not come to end.  Police has stepped up surveillance of Jammu and Kashmiri students who were asked to furnish details by the police. Last month, state government (Governor) raised the harassment issue of Kashmiris with Govt. of India. It appears the request made by the Governor was not heeded and the harassment and monitoring of Kashmiris continued unabated. Sometimes Kashmiris got arrested for carrying room heater and sometimes serious charges of sedition were filed against students for supporting a particular cricket team. This month also there were disturbing incidents of surveillance and harassment of Kashmiri community.  
· J&K STUDENTS ‘UNDER SCANNER’ IN KOLKATA 
March 16: Kolkata police is asking all colleges in the city to give details of students hailing from Jammu and Kashmir. The direction comes in the wake of student protests at Jadavpur University against the arrest of JNU students in Delhi.
 A note from the police, addressed to principals of the colleges reads: “Please let me know that students, whose residential addresses is under the State of Jammu & Kashmir, studies in your Institution for onwards transmission to the Ministry of Home Affairs, North Block, New Delhi, Govt. of India (sic).”
The note is signed by the police officer in charge of intelligence at the police station in which the college falls. It was sent out to colleges in the last week of February when students were protesting both at JNU and at Jadavpur University. Asked about the survey, Joint Commissioner of Police (Intelligence) Pallav Kanti Ghosh said that the information about the note is “authentic.”
Asked why it was being done, he declined to comment.
 Senior police officers said that the request for these details had come from central intelligence agencies which asked the Special Branch of Kolkata police to get the details. “It’s an attempt to create dossiers on J&K students so that we can monitor their activities,” said a top police officer. “This is something new, we are doing this for the first time.”
A Union Home Ministry spokesman, while commenting on the issue, said: “Following the JNU controversy, the Centre had sensitised all states to take adequate precautionary measures to avoid a repeat of such incidents, and a general advisory was issued to all states.”
· IT WASN'T BEEF, SAYS ONE REPORT; KASHMIRI STUDENTS WERE ARRESTED
Chittorgarh: March 17: Four Kashmiri students were allegedly beaten at a private university in Rajasthan over rumours that they were cooking beef in their hostel room.
 After they were attacked, the same students were arrested by the police for "disturbing peace".
 The incident took place on March 14, Monday, at the Mewar University in Chittorgarh, about five hours from state capital Jaipur.
 The students have been released but heavy police presence signals a tense campus.
 The police said the situation was controlled before it could escalate.
The meat that the students were cooking was not beef, the police said later after initial tests by their veterinary board. The results of a forensic test are, however, not out yet.
 Eating beef is illegal in Rajasthan and the Mewar University, like many in the state, doesn't allow non-vegetarian food.
The university says that what happened that day was actually a clash between two feuding groups of students.
"It was an internal matter between students," university media liaison officer Harish Gurnani said on Wednesday.
 "Sometimes, these small fights happen because people are from different socio-cultural backgrounds," he told reporters.
 The university, which offers many technical courses, has a large number of students from Jammu and Kashmir; some of them say they are upset by the controversy but want to get back to their classes.
 Earlier this week, sources in the home ministry clarified that its advisory to colleges on students from Jammu and Kashmir had been misinterpreted.
 The advisory that was sent in February to state governments said that "there is perception among the people of Jammu and Kashmir that their wards are being treated with suspicion and hostility" at colleges. Officials said that because families had complained that students have trouble finding housing, for example, they asked states to "ensure the protection of students from J&K".
 The advisory asked for "utmost care and sensitivity" in handling Kashmiri students.
 Last year, attacks over beef rumours, including the mob killing of a man in Uttar Pradesh's Dadri, were cited as examples of "rising intolerance" in India.
· THREE FROM JAMMU & KASHMIR ‘ASSAULTED’, PROBE ON
March 21: Three persons hailing from Jammu & Kashmir, living in a paying guest (PG) accommodation in Sohana, Mohali district, were assaulted recently, allegedly by the son of the PG facility’s owner. One suffered serious injuries and two escaped with minor injuries. The Sohana police have booked the PG owner’s son, Gursimran Singh, on charges of attempt to murder and causing grievous injuries. While Gursimran is absconding, four of his accomplices allegedly involved in the assault are yet to be identified. The incident took place on March 15 over a petty argument. Gursimran and his four accomplices attacked the occupants late night as they had not switched off the lights in their room after watching the India-New Zealand World T20 cricket match. Those injured in the attack include Sanjay Singh, Kunwar Kumar and Pradeep Kumar, all three residents of Doda, J&K. Sanjay, who suffered serious head injuries, was admitted to civil hospital, Phase-VI, Mohali. 
The PG accommodation is located in Chilla village at Sohana, Mohali. Sanjay, Pradeep and Kunwar work in a private company at Mohali. According to the FIR, Sanjay, Pradeep and Kunwar were having dinner after the India-New Zealand cricket match was telecast. Sanjay, who is the complainant in the FIR, alleged, “Around 11 pm, Gursimran Singh and his friends came to the PG premises and asked us why we had not switched off the room lights and ceiling fan in the neighbouring room. We told them that we were not aware about who had left the lights and fan on. He started abusing us and assaulted us with hockey sticks. I was dragged out of the room and mercilessly assaulted. Pradeep and Kunwar were also badly assaulted. When they left, Pradeep and Kunwar took me to the hospital”. Station House Officer (SHO) of Sohana police station, sub-inspector Rajeev Kumar said, “We have registered a case against Gursimran and his four unidentified accomplices under Sections 307 (attempt to murder), 323 (voluntarily causing hurt), 506 (criminal intimidation) and 34 of the Indian Penal Code. A search is on for the suspects.” Nearly 90 persons stay in the PG, which has around 50 rooms. Most of them are students of private colleges in the vicinity, while a few young men are working in private companies including some call centres in Mohali. Greater Mohali Development Authority (GMADA) officials told Chandigarh Newsline that they were not certain if the PG was legal. “We will look into the matter,” a GMADA official told Chandigarh Newsline.

12-YEAR-OLD SRINAGAR BOY LOSES HAND TO LITTERED TEAR-GAS SHELL

March 05: A-12-year-old boy lost his right hand when an unexploded tear-gas shell he had found on road went off in his hands in Rainawari area of Srinagar on Saturday morning.
Mohammad Iqbal Qudoosi, an orphan school boy from Rainawari's Khar Mohalla, had picked up the unexploded shell near Nowhatta.
People in Shaher-e-Khaas including Nowhatta were observing shut down against the alleged police excesses in the area.
The boy's relatives said Nowhatta locality houses Iqbal's school and the school was closed due to tension in the area. The boy was returning home with the unexploded tear-gas shell in his hand.
The shell exploded when the boy was playing with it resulting in grievous injures to his right hand.
He was immediately shifted to nearby JLNM Hospital for treatment.
"The doctors in the hospital referred him to Bone and Joint Hospital," one of the relatives said.
The boy underwent an emergency surgery in the late afternoon and his hand was amputated wrist downwards.
	The police also confirmed the incident, saying the boy picked up the unexploded shell in Nowhatta area and was trying to play with it near his residence when it burst in his hands.
"The shell could have remained unexploded during law and order problem which was subsequently picked up by this boy," a senior police official told media.
	The victim was initially rushed to the JLNM Hospital in the old city, but was later transferred to B&J Hospital where his hand was amputated in the late afternoon.
A nurse who was taking care of the injured boy in the hospital's emergency ward said they witness many horrific scenes but the boy's condition is painful for the entire emergency staff.
"We see hundreds of cases where body parts are amputated but this one is painful when a young boy is losing an important part of his body. It is very painful," she said.
According to the relatives, Iqbal was only eight year old when he lost his father four years ago. Ghulam Rasool Qudoosi (Iqbal's father) had died of serious illness in 2012, they said.
Iqbal has a twin brother and a younger sister.
"He left for his school in morning after which we didn't hear from him. We came to know from the neighbours who told us that he suffered injuries when a shell exploded in his hand," one of his relatives said.
The incident happened a day after a shopkeeper in downtown Srinagar was hit by a pellet fired by police, injuring him seriously.

	OFFICIAL CONFIRMS ARMY SURVEYED 80% OF VILLAGES IN BK PORA TEHSIL
DEFENCE SPOKESMAN SAYS ‘NO NORMS ALLOW ARMY TO CONDUCT ANY SUCH SURVEY’

March 31: Budgam deputy commissioner Altaf Mir corroborated a media report about population profiling being carried out by the army in Baghat Kanipora area of the district, a report which has been rejected as baseless by a defence spokesman.
While local newspaper Kashmir Reader had reported about the survey in Chak village of Baghat Kanipora Tehsil, an inquiry report submitted by the Tehsildar to the deputy commissioner says that the survey had been conducted in as many as 80% of the villages in the Tehsil during the past 10 months.
Army’s counterinsurgency wing, Rashtriya Rifles, which carried out the survey, has now said that it will stop the survey, according to Mir.
While carrying out the survey, the army had informed neither the police nor the district administration. People were asked about family members’ details, phone numbers, occupation, etc., and told that the information was needed as it “comes handy in times of natural disasters like floods”.
This is what Srinagr-based spokesman of the army, Lt Col NN Joshi, had said about the survey:
“It is totally baseless. If any such thing has happened, the locals should have filed complaint in the police station. They did not do it and now they have asked you to become their messiah.”
After Kashmir Reader published the story, Mir had asked a report from the Tehsildar concerned.
Mir told Kashmir Reader that the report has found that army had conducted the survey without the information of the district administration and police.
“We have contacted the army. They told us they will not extend the survey to any area. But since they had neither informed civil administration nor police, I took up the issue with DIG police central Kashmir who is further inquiring about the survey,” Mir said.
Baghat Kanipora Tehsildar Abdul Bafeer told Kashmir Reader that during inquiry, a numberdar of a village told him that an army officer had called him and informed that the soldiers will be conducting a survey in his village.
When Lt Col Joshi was told about the Tehsildar’s inquiry report and asked whether army units have been carrying out these surveys without informing the higher authorities, he said, “Last week I told you because no norms allow army to conduct a survey. I am neither privy to the tehsildar’s report nor the survey. But I will see where and why was this survey conducted. I will let you know accordingly.”

NIA BOOKS GANDERBAL YOUTH AZHAR FOR ALLEGED IS LINKS
FAMILY CONTEST 

March 21: The National Investigation Agency has booked a youth from central Kashmir's Ganderbal district for his alleged links with the 'Islamic State' (IS) organization.
Sheikh Azhar Al Islam (22) son of Abdus Sattar of Prang area in Kangan Ganderbal was arrested along with Adnan Hussain from Karnataka and Muhammad Farhan from Maharashtra by the NIA on January 31 from New Delhi's IGI Airport soon after they had arrived from the United Arab Emirates. "He (Azhar) has been booked for IS links and sent to a jail," Inspector General of Police, (NIA) Sudhir Kumar Singh told media over phone from New Delhi.
Singh who is also Public Relations Officer of the NIA, claimed: "The investigators have found his involvement with the IS."
Azhar is the first youth from Kashmir who has been booked by the NIA for alleged links with the IS.
Sources in the NIA said Azhar along with two others was held for allegedly hatching a conspiracy to "identify, motivate and radicalize youth and train Indian citizens, both in India and other friendly countries, to join the IS."
Azhar, according to his family, moved to the UAE on June 1, 2015 after he got a job in a hotel there. They had said the family compulsions forced Azhar to look for a job abroad. 
"His mother underwent two surgeries and family has lot of debt," his family members had said, soon after his arrest by the NIA. "Our ward is completely innocent."
Police in J&K had said Azhar is not involved in any "subversive activity."
"Our records maintain that he was not previously involved in any adverse activity," Inspector General of Police, Kashmir, Syed Javid Mujtaba Gillani, had told Greater Kashmir after Azhar's arrest. "This is revealed in our preliminary investigation. We are carrying out further investigation."
Pertinently, the Union Ministry of Home Affairs has time and again cleared that there is no presence of IS in J&K. 
"At the grassroots, IS doesn't have any leader or a commander in the State. Only a few people are downloading pictures of this organization from the internet and displaying it," the MHA officials have said, time and again.
The National Investigation Agency has booked a youth from central Kashmir's Ganderbal district for his alleged links with the 'Islamic State' (IS) organization.
Sheikh Azhar Al Islam (22) son of AbdusSattar of Prang area in KanganGanderbal was arrested along with Adnan Hussain from Karnataka and Muhammad Farhan from Maharashtra by the NIA on January 31 from New Delhi's IGI Airport soon after they had arrived from the United Arab Emirates. "He (Azhar) has been booked for IS links and sent to a jail," Inspector General of Police, (NIA) Sudhir Kumar Singh told media over phone from New Delhi.
Singh who is also Public Relations Officer of the NIA, claimed: "The investigators have found his involvement with the IS."
Azhar is the first youth from Kashmir who has been booked by the NIA for alleged links with the IS.
Sources in the NIA said Azhar along with two others was held for allegedly hatching a conspiracy to "identify, motivate and radicalize youth and train Indian citizens, both in India and other friendly countries, to join the IS."
Azhar, according to his family, moved to the UAE on June 1, 2015 after he got a job in a hotel there. They had said the family compulsions forced Azhar to look for a job abroad. 
"His mother underwent two surgeries and family has lot of debt," his family members had said, soon after his arrest by the NIA. "Our ward is completely innocent."
Police in J&K had said Azhar is not involved in any "subversive activity."
"Our records maintain that he was not previously involved in any adverse activity," Inspector General of Police, Kashmir, Syed Javid Mujtaba Gillani, had told media after Azhar's arrest. "This is revealed in our preliminary investigation. We are carrying out further investigation."
Pertinently, the Union Ministry of Home Affairs has time and again cleared that there is no presence of IS in J&K. 
"At the grassroots, IS doesn't have any leader or a commander in the State. Only a few people are downloading pictures of this organization from the internet and displaying it," the MHA officials have said, time and again.



CRPF TROOPERS GO BERSERK IN HABBA KADAL

March 24: A group of drunk CRPF troopers went berserk in Habba Kadal area of Srinagar on Wednesday evening, ransacking several shops and damaging private vehicles, local residents told media. A complete shutdown was observed on March 24 by the local shopkeepers, who warned they will continue it till the CRPF camp is not removed.
 President of Traders Association Habba Kadal Mehrajuddin Giloo told media that CRPF personnel were celebrating Holi on Wednesday evening at Habba Kadal market. He said that during the events, some personnel used foul language and made aggressive gestures at the shopkeepers. This led to a heated exchange of words. Eventually, the CRPF personnel went berserk and thrashed many shopkeepers.
“They (CRPF personnel) thrashed many local residents including women and children, ransacked shops and smashed windscreens of many private vehicles,” Giloo said.
 Locals said that a resident of Bijbehara Fida Hussain Dar was ruthlessly beaten up by the troopers. He was later taken to SMHS Hospital for treatment. Dar had come to the area to visit his relatives.
 A grocer, Mohammad Shafi Wada, alleged that his shop was ransacked. A vegetable vendor Manzoor Ahmad Darsequran alleged that troopers threw away vegetables from his shop and abused him.
“The troopers were drunk and attacked passersby and shopkeepers without any provocation,” he said.
 The traders said the local CRPF camp has become a perpetual nuisance for the local population and the shopkeepers. “The troopers of the camp generally pass provocative comments on the passersby. They even hurl stones and marbles to provoke youngsters,” Giloo said.
“The CRPF men deliberately provoke youth. They only look for an alibi to beat up youngsters,” Reyaz Ahmad, a local resident alleged.
 The traders have called for complete shutdown against the harassment by the government forces and demanded immediate removal of the CRPF camp.
“All the shops and business establishments will remain closed until the CRPF camp is removed from the area,” Giloo said.
 He said that the traders of the area lodged a protest with the higher-ups of police and CRPF two months ago and demanded relocation of the camp. “The higher ups assured us that the camp would be relocated but no action was taken later,” Giloo said.
Deputy Commissioner Srinagar Dr Farooq Ahmad Lone said that the matter has been brought into his notice. “We are looking into the matter,” Lone told media.

CHATTISINGHPORA REMEMBERS THE VICTIMS OF 2000 CARNAGE

 April 20: Sikhs have demanded a fresh probe into the Chattisinghpora massacre, in which 34 members of the community were killed by unidentified uniformed gunmen on 20 March 2000, ahead of then US Present Bill Clinton’s visit to India.
 On the 16th anniversary of the massacre, a remembrance meet was held at the local Gurduwara in Chattisinghpora where men, women and children offered prayers for the victims.
 	On 20 March 2000, unknown gunmen barged into the houses in Chattisinghpora and ordered all the Sikh men and boys to assemble at the village Gurdwara before firing at them, killing 34.
 	The only survivor of the massacre was Nanak Singh Aulakh, who recounted the events to reporters.
 Speaking on the occasion, Rajinder Singh, who heads the local Gurduwara, demanded an impartial probe into the massacre.
“Pathribal killings happened a few days after Chattisinghpora massacre. Pathribal fake encounter victims were held responsible for the killing of Sikhs, which later proved to be a big lie. Why have the governments not probed this massacre,” Rajinder said.
 	“This day is a black day for us and we won’t forget our loved ones who were brutally murdered,” he added.
 He also demanded the status of a minority community for the Sikhs in the Valley.
“Sikhs being in minority have suffered a lot during the past twenty five years. We have been demanding minority status all these years but nobody has paid heed,” Rajinder said.

MILITARIZATION
· 
· PROTESTS AGAINST ARMY IN AKHNOOR; LOCALS APPEAL GUV TO RECONSIDER ARTILLERY FIRING RANGE DECISION
March 2: Opposing the move of Home Department to hand over 117 villages of Akhnoor tehsil for artillery firing range of Army, hundreds of people Monday held a protest demonstration demanding revocation of the notification.
The villagers led by Congress leader Sham Lal Sharma assembled here in the town blocking the vehicular traffic on Rajouri-Poonch-Pallanwala road for over three hours.
The villagers were angered after learning that the Home Department on December 31 has notified under SRO 462 around 90, 000 hectares of land for the use of army as artillery firing range.
Under this notification, Sharma said, out of total 132 revenue villages of entire Akhnoor tehsil, 117 will be taken over by the Army.
“They had given two months for filing objections. Surprisingly, the notification was not brought into the notice of the victim villagers who only came to know today and held demonstration,” alleged former Minister, while talking to Rising Kashmir.
He said the people are not ready to vacate their villages so that it could be used as firing range. SDM Akhnoor also had no knowledge about the notification which we provided him, claimed the Congress leader.
“The notification was issued and kept in hiding so that people do not know about it. We have approached Principal Secretary Home, Divisional Commissioner Jammu, Dr Pawan Kotwal, and Deputy Commissioner, Jammu appealing to revisit their decision and not create situation where people would resist any such attempt.”
“We are not ready to leave even an inch for firing range. Governor must think about the poor people of the tehsil and rethink over the notification as people would not hand over the land to army,” said the Congress leader.
The confrontation of border residents does not end here. The army also raises objections and doesn’t allow construction of houses within 180 meters wherever they (Army) have their camps.
“In areas around the Army camps, the locals have been facing harassment by army because the constriction works are not allowed,” alleged Sharma.
Sharma said even as it’s a welfare state, army decides on personal matters like construction of houses.
“They don’t allow construction. People are facing problem with such restrictions in Akhnoor and have to consult Army before any construction. Army even decides how much floors are to be constructed,” Rakesh Sharma, a local from Akhnoor said.
Yesterday, BJP MP Jugal Kishore Sharma, MLA Akhnoor Rajeev Sharma and MLA Chammb, Dr Krishan Lal also assured the locals that their party is with the demand of locals.
· ARMY FAILS TO KEEP WORD, STAYS PUT IN OVER 640 BUILDINGS, PREMISES 
Mar 06: Despite its claims of being committed to the mutually-agreed decisions with the state government regarding vacation of land and property, Army continues to occupy 210 government buildings, 434 private structures and three major industrial units in Jammu and Kashmir.
	“As per the details collected from police headquarters and those furnished by divisional commissioners of Jammu and Kashmir, 647 buildings including major industrial units of the state are still under the occupation of army,” reads an official report.
As per the official document, as many as 278 government buildings, 1302 private buildings, 45 hotels, 5 cinemas and 18 industrial units are in unauthorized possession of army and paramilitary forces in the State.
"Cumulatively, as on date, 1648 premises are under the occupation of security forces of which 647 buildings are under army," the report by the state government reveals.
The official document also states that out of 20 buildings, which were to be vacated within six months following the 2013 Civil-Military Liaison Conference, 14 continue to be under Army occupation, contrary to the commitment made by it in the previous CMLC meetings.
On November 12, 2013, during the CML Conference chaired by the then chief minister Omar Abdullah, Army had agreed to vacate 20 buildings within the period of six months. Army had agreed that out of 22 buildings under its occupation at different places, 20 buildings would be vacated within six months except two of them at Dagger Villa Gulmarg and a PDD building at Bhaderwah.
The army had cited some infrastructural issues and had sought time to vacate the remaining two buildings. But it had pledged to vacate the remaining 20 buildings within six months which they eventually failed to do. 
According to the minutes of the 2013 CMLC, it was agreed by army to vacate the 20 buildings within stipulated time. However, the latest status report on 2013 CMLC states that only six out of 20 buildings have been vacated by army.
Earlier, successive governments had claimed that 1474 buildings, including 179 schools and 34 hotels besides 56 bunkers, have been vacated by forces in the state in view of the improving security situation.
Abdul Rehman Veeri, the then Minister for Horticulture, had informed the Legislative Council that 21337 acres of land is under unauthorized occupation of army and paramilitary forces in the state.
“1,307 private houses, 278 government buildings, 27 hotels, 5 cinema halls, 3 hospitals and 18 industrial units are still under the occupation of security forces in the state and efforts are on to ensure their vacation,” Veeri had said.
However, despite an official committee formed to monitor the implementation of CMLC decisions, the government has failed to recover the public infrastructure and land possessed and supposed to be vacated by army and other security agencies in the state.
The figures put a question mark on army claims that they have been committed to meeting all the mutually agreed decisions arising not only out of Civil Military Liaison Conference 2015 but of all such previous meetings.
· ARMY DECIDES TO VACATE 300 ACRES OF LAND BY MARCH-END IN JK
March 18: In a significant development, Army has decided to vacate about 300 acres of State land under its occupation at four places in Jammu and Kashmir by the end of this month.
“Army’s Northern command has agreed to hand over 16.30 acres of state land held by it adjoining the campus of Jammu University; 212 acres of land held by it at Tatoo Grounds in Srinagar;   57.07 acres at High Grounds, Anantnag in South Kashmir and land held at lower Khurba Thang in Kargil in cold desert of Ladakh,” an official spokesman said.
The decision was taken during a meeting held between State Governor N N Vohra and Army’s Northern command chief Lt Gen D S Hooda at Raj Bhavan in Jammu last evening.  Top civil officials of the State also attended the meeting.
During the meeting, it was agreed by Northern Command chief that the land at the lower Plateau Khurba Thang would be handed over to civil authorities before March 31, when Chief Secretary visits Kargil, as Chairman of the Committee set up to deal with all  Army Key Location Plan matters.
The land adjoining the campus of Jammu University, Tatoo Ground in Srinagar and High Grounds, Anantnag would be handed over to civil authorities by the army before March 31.
According to official spokesman, Governor Vohra and Northern command chief Lt Gen D S Hooda will jointly visit the site at Tatoo Ground in Srinagar before March 31 to discuss certain proposals regarding the utilisation of the vacated land for creating a park, recreational facilities for youth etc.
The Governor directed that the committee headed by the State Chief Secretary shall visit Jammu University, Kargil and Anantnag to satisfy all formalities on the spot and take over the said sites.
Vohra also reviewed all other decisions and arrived at certain understandings with the Army Commander in regard to the location of HAWS in the Gulmarg Bowl.
An official spokesman said Governor shall shortly have a further meeting in this regard with the Army Commander.
“During the meeting, Vohra and Lt Gen D S Hooda also discussed all cases relating to regularisation of certain lands and buildings held by the Army. Further action on these decisions will be taken before May 31, 2016,” he said.
The meeting also discussed issues relating to notification of firing ranges at various places.
The spokesman said it was decided that J&K Chief Secretary shall pursue the pending issues with the Ministry of Defence, especially regarding the enhancement of the scales of rent payable for the required areas of land.
PDP chief Mehbooba Mufti, who is presently engaged in talks with BJP leadership on government formation in the State, has been demanding vacation of land occupied by the security forces in Jammu and Kashmir.
The PDP chief, who was tipped to take over as Chief Minister after the death of her father and former CM Mufti Sayeed on January 7 this year, is also demanding withdrawal of AFSPA from some peaceful areas of the State, return of some NHPC run power projects to the State, resumption of talks with separatists, no unnecessary interference in state affairs by the central government and release of more central funds to the State.
· ARMY STAYS PUT IN KUPWARA HOSPITAL
March 23: A hospital building constructed for the benefit of the villagers in Krusan, Lolab is under the Army occupation for last 19 years while as the sub-health center of the area is operating from a single room. Completed in 1996, the hospital building was taken over by Army same year and till date the occupation continues.
Abdul Fateh Lone, sarpanch of Krusan village told Kashmir Reader that it was after a lot of toil and efforts that a hospital was sanctioned for the village. But the villagers could not taste the fruits of their long wait and patience.
	“This hospital building was constructed for the welfare of poor people but ironically army occupied it soon after its completion and while as the health centre of the village is operating from a single rented room,” Lone said.
In 1986 Krusan sub-health centre was setup in a private rented room. After 10 years of perusal by the villagers, the department constructed its own two stories building in 1996 and equipped it with all primary medical facilities. But only two weeks after its opening, the building was occupied by army. Presently it is under the occupation of 28 Rashtriya Rifles of Army.
	While people of the area have to travel about 17 kilometers to reach district hospital Kupwara in case of serious health problems, the sub-health center in the village is running from a single room for last 30 years.
	Staff members posted at the health center are scared to divulge any details for obvious reasons but admit that the center does not serve any purpose in its present condition.
	“Our officers know what the issue is,” they said.
Altaf Ahmad Khan, a local resident said that the health unit with only two female nurses is operating from the same room from last 30 years.
“This is shame for higher authorities and politicians who despite being aware of our sufferings have never paid any attention,” Altaf lamented.
Though the locals have approached officers of the health department, MLA’s and other politicians but the building could not be freed from Army.
“We twice met our local MLA Ab Haq Khan and the concerned CMO’s. Every time they assured that this matter would be sort-out but nothing happened,” Lone said.
This hospital was supposed to serve as sub-health centre for adjoining villages like Krusan, Maidanpora, Tangchakh, Badibera, Daramwari and other villages having an estimated population of around 10,000.
Chief Medical Officer, Kupwara Dr G N Lone told Kashmir Reader that letters sent to army and higher officials of health department evoked no reply.
“We have correspondence with the army and health officials regarding the occupied building but never got a reply,” Dr Lone said.
He said that they have asked the army to pay the rent for the years of occupancy. “If they are not going to vacate, then should pay the amount so that we can build another building,” he said.
Deputy Commissioner, Kupwara, Rajiv Ranjan said his office wasn’t aware about any such matter. When informed by Kashmir Reader, he took up the matter with Block Medical Officer Sogam and directed him to take up the issue with the commandant officer the unit.
“On the guidelines of DC Kupwara, I wrote a letter to the Commanding Officer (CO) of army and personally met him today to ask him to vacate the building. The CO said that he would take up this matter with General Officer Commanding (GOC) and soon this building will be vacated,” BMO Sogam, Dr Firdous said.
Army refutes 
The army on Monday - March 28 -sought to rebut the media report regarding the force’s occupation of a hospital in Lolab, Kupwara, even as the correspondent stands by his story that was based on accounts of the officials concerned.
Army said the story—carried on March 24, 2016, under the headline ‘Army stays put in hospital building for 19 years, villagers suffer’—was “not based on facts and is an attempt to malign the fair image of the army”.
“The building located near the COB of an RR unit has been lying vacant even since it was handed over back to Block Medical Officer of Public Health Dept in July 2007,” the army said in a written communiqué.
The story was based on the account of chief medical officer, Kupwara, Dr G N Lone, who had told Kashmir Reader that army had never replied to letters requesting it to vacate the hospital building.
· 20 YEARS LATER, SCHOOL REMAINS UNDER ARMY OCCUPATION IN ZACHALDARA 
March 30: The presence of the army inside a school premises in Zachaldara in Handwara has badly affected the studies of students here. It has been 20 years now, but the efforts of school authorities and the education department to get the building vacated have proved futile.
 According to local residents, army occupied the Government High School building in Zachaldara in 1996, and till date the occupation continues. The army’s 22 Rashtriya Rifles unit has not only occupied the two-room office of the Headmaster but also taken eight kanals of school land under its control by fencing it off with concertina wire. “Many efforts were made to get the school premises vacated but we did not succeed,” a local resident told media.
 In 1999, the education department upgraded this school to Higher Secondary level and it became the first and only such institute in tehsil Zachaldara. However, nothing could be done to convince army to leave the premises.
 It was learnt that the school management approached the authorities many times and even deputy commissioners and senior police officers visited the area from time to time but could do nothing. Army has raised six tin sheds in the school compound while the land occupied by it too has been fenced.
 Being the only Higher Secondary school in Zachaldara, it is the first preference of parents of girl students. However, the presence of army in the school compound is a big deterrent. Most parents of girl students prefer to send their daughters somewhere else to keep them away from the constant gaze of army men. The student roll in the school is 350 while the intake capacity is much more.
“One of our school buildings and half of the ground is under army occupation. We can’t read, we can’t play or walk freely in and around the school area. Some days ago, army men were celebrating Holi and beating drums when we were studying in our classes,” one of the students told Kashmir Reader on conditions of anonymity. He added that students staged many protests in the past against the army presence in the school but nothing changed.
 A female student, while talking to Kashmir Reader, alleged that army men have ‘installed hidden cameras around their camp’ and they were watching every movement of the students. “We can’t participate in games or in other physical programmes for obvious reasons,” she said, adding “there are many female staffers and they too can’t move freely in the school premises.”
An official of the school told media that one of the old buildings was demolished recently following orders from the higher authorities. “Now we are not only short of space but the remaining part of the ground too has been filled with debris. Where are students and staff supposed to go,” he asked.
Chief Education Officer (CEO) Kupwara Farooq Ahmad Dar confirmed to media that the army had occupied one of the school buildings and its ground in Zachaldara, Handwara, about 20 years ago. Dar expressed his helplessness in getting the building vacated. “We approached everybody from civil administration to the army top brass but they do not want to vacate the building.”
Director School Education, Kashmir, could not be contacted as his mobile phone was switched off till this story was filed.
However, Lt Col NN Joshi, the army’s Srinagar-based spokesperson told media that the army had occupied some ‘other state land’, not the school. “According to my information, we have not occupied the school premises,” he said.
· ARMY ‘LEGALLY’ HANDED OVER 5 LAKH KANALS OF LAND IN LADAKH: REPORT 
March 30: The state government has “legally handed over five lakh kanals of land to the army for setting up its bases, firing ranges and for other defence purposes in Ladakh”, a Chandigarh-based newspaper reported.
 Quoting Home department, the newspapers—The Tribune—said the army shall be setting up artillery firing range over 40,000 kanals at Mandal Thang in Leh district.
“We have given the approval to authorise 5 lakh kanals to the army in Ladakh for defence purposes, including establishing bases and firing ranges,” the report quoted the officials as saying, without mentioning his name.
 As per the report, the deputy secretary, Revenue, Ghulam Rasool, said the process had been initiated to legally authorise to the army the land that was under the force’s unlawful possession.
 The revenue department, the report said, wanted the army to either vacate the land acquired unlawfully or provide rent to the government.
 After the army refused to vacate the land acquired unlawfully, the “state government gave in and asked it to take its lawful possession for seeking compensation,” the report said.
 It said the army has also received approval from the state government for setting up an artillery firing range at Mandal Thang in Ladakh.
“The army had been demanding land for setting up an artillery firing range at Mandal Thang and their demand has been accepted,” the report quoted district development commissioner Leh, Prasnna Ramaswamy G, as saying.
 Army’s firing ranges in Kashmir Valley have been a subject of debate, which started after the residents of central Kashmir’s Budgam district started demanding relocation of the artillery firing range at Tosmaidan.
 The then-government subsequently set up a committee to identify the army an alternate site to be used for artillery training, but its decision, if already arrived at, wasn’t made official.
 Reportedly, the army has been provided a “couple of alternatives” to Tosmaidan. The last week, the media reports suggested that Tragbal in Bandipora is going to be the new firing range.
· KUPWARA CIVIL SOCIETY TO PROTEST AGAINST ARMY’S OCCUPATION OF HEALTH FACILITY 
March 30: A civil society group in north Kashmir’s Kupwara district has decided to launch a movement against the illegal occupation of a public health facility by the army. The group has urged the army authorities to vacate the building located at Krusan village for the benefit of common people in the area.
 The issue was highlighted by media on March 24 that evoked clarifications from the army.
 Convener of Civil Society Kupwara, Showkat Masoodi said that the group would fight for the restoration of health facility.
“We demand that Army should vacate the hospital building immediately because poor residents are continuously suffering,” Masoodi said.
“A year ago, we approached the Chief Medical Officer Kupwara and Block Medical Officer to take the matter with civil administration but to no avail,” he said.
“Army must pay the rent for the time they have used the building and renovate it before leaving the area. The building is not fit to house a medical facility,” the Civil Society leader said.
 Meanwhile sources said that the army and medical officers have started working out modalities to vacate the building.
· ARMY VACATES HOSPITAL BUILDING IN LOLAB VILLAGE
March 31: The army vacated on Thursday a hospital building it had been occupying for the past 19 years in a remote village of Kupwara district, Krusan (Lolab).
“Today army removed their bunkers, wire fencing and other material from the occupied hospital building.  We will be able to make the building functional within a few days,” Kupwara Block Medical Officer Dr Firdous said.
The BMO said that residents are jubilant after they came to know that army has removing the bunkers. He added that the commanding officer concerned has been asked to renovate the building and pay the rent for all these years.
Sarpanch of Krusan Lolab area of Kupwara district Abdul Fateh Lone told Kashmir Reader, “We are very thankful to the press and BMO who fought for us. People were suffering. Now we will have our own health care unit.”
He said although the local lawmaker, Abdul Haq Khan had promised them that he will sort out the matter with the army, but after winning the (assembly) election he never visited this area.
Local media had published a report, ‘Army Staying put in Hospital Building for 19 Years: Villagers Suffer’ in its 24 Mar 2016 issue. The army had termed the report baseless and also issued a clarification that the facility had been vacated by it in 2007.
However, health authorities had rejected army’s clarification, saying the building had never been handed over them despite scores of letters written all these years to various army units that had occupied the building.

POLICE GET ROBOTS TO BATTLE PROTESTERS IN KASHMIR

March 05: Jammu and Kashmir Police is fielding robotic weapons against protesters in Kashmir to minimize injuries to its personnel in stone pelting.
Highly placed police sources told media that robotic weapons will help police forces to 'maintain law and order, particularly during violent protests and stone pelting.'
Giving details of the sophisticated weapon, a police official said, "Northern Lights Tactical make RPG-A5 Remote Paintball Gun helps police to target potential threat without risking the lives of its men"
"A .68-caliber Tippmann-A5 paintball action gun with camera mounted on a small remotely operated tank can go to any extent in vulnerable area and hit the target accurately, without risking the lives of our policemen," he said.
He added that due to the caliber of the gun it can also be loaded with pepper-ball rounds for remote crowd control.
Sources added that due to bulk loader tank under moving robotic tank, it can shoot three rounds in one go and adjustable mount cradle with strong remote control makes it useful for all forces.
"The gadget will be deployed at vulnerable zones and it will automatically target the stone pelters, the official said.
Jammu and Kashmir Police is fielding robotic weapons against protesters in Kashmir to minimize injuries to its personnel in stone pelting.
	Highly placed police sources told Greater Kashmir that robotic weapons will help police forces to 'maintain law and order, particularly during violent protests and stone pelting.'
Giving details of the sophisticated weapon, a police official said, "Northern Lights Tactical make RPG-A5 Remote Paintball Gun helps police to target potential threat without risking the lives of its men"
"A .68-caliber Tippmann-A5 paintball action gun with camera mounted on a small remotely operated tank can go to any extent in vulnerable area and hit the target accurately, without risking the lives of our policemen," he said.
He added that due to the caliber of the gun it can also be loaded with pepper-ball rounds for remote crowd control.
Sources added that due to bulk loader tank under moving robotic tank, it can shoot three rounds in one go and adjustable mount cradle with strong remote control makes it useful for all forces.
"The gadget will be deployed at vulnerable zones and it will automatically target the stone pelters, the official said.

SUICIDE BY TROOPERS
· 
· ARMY TROOPER SUICIDES
March 25: An army trooper committed suicide by shooting himself dead with his service rifle at his company headquarters Kanzalwal village of in north Kashmir’s Bandipora. The soldier was identified as Kuldeep Singh of 13 SIKH regiment.

OFFICIALLY STATED
· 
· 39 SECURITY MEN, 17 CIVILIANS KILLED IN 208 MILITANCY INCIDENTS IN VALLEY IN 2015: MOS HOME
Mar 2: India has told Pakistan, including at the highest level, to uphold the sanctity of the Line of Control (LoC) and abide by the ceasefire commitment of 2003 along the International Border and LoC.
Minister of State for Home, Haribhai Parathibhai Chaudhary today said ceasefire violation is taken up with Pakistani authorities through the established mechanism of hotlines, flag meetings as well as talks between the Directorate Generals of Military Operations.
"Government of India (GoI) has repeatedly emphasised, including at the highest level, the need for Pakistan to uphold the sanctity of the LoC and abide by the ceasefire commitment of 2003 along the IB and LoC in Jammu and Kashmir," he said in Lok Sabha in a written reply.
The minister said there were 253 instances of ceasefire violation along the IB in 2015, 430 in 2014 and 148 in 2013.
Chaudhary said there were 121 infiltration attempts along the border in Jammu and Kashmir in 2015 of which 33 were successful. However, 46 militants were killed by the forces.
He said in 2014, there were 222 infiltration attempts in the state of which 65 were successful. A total of 52 militants were killed by the forces that year. 
The minister noted that 208 militancy incidents took place in the Valley in 2015 in which 39 security personnel and 17 civilians were killed.
“There were 222 militancy incidents in J&K in 2014 in which 47 security personnel and 28 civilians were killed,” he added.
· APPROPRIATE ACTION WILL BE TAKEN AGAINST LAW VIOLATING PROTESTERS: ARMY 
March 11: Two days after the civilians sustained injuries in the firing incident in Ashmuqam area of south Kashmir’s Anantnag district, Army Thursday said it will take “appropriate” action against the law violating protesters.
In a statement issued here Col NN Joshi, PRO (Def) Srinagar said, “In case a crowd takes law in its hands and threatens life and property, security forces will be constrained to initiate appropriate action to counter it.”
Army said a joint operation was launched by the Army and Jammu and Kashmir police on March 8 in Aishmuqam after “specific information” about the presence of some militants in Magrey Mohalla.
“As the search operations were in progress, a large crowd of approximately 1000 people gathered at the site to disrupt the operations in clear violation of existing orders which had also been recently reiterated by the police,” statement adds.
“Soon, some unscrupulous, rogue elements from the crowd started resorting to heavy stone pelting and sloganeering. Despite this provocation, the Security Forces exercised full restraint in trying to dissuade the crowd from interfering with their operations.
“However, not paying any heed, the crowd responded by intensified stone pelting, shouting inflammatory slogans and started closing in with the security forces resulting in injury to more than a dozen personnel including a JCO of the Army and an ASI of J&K Police,” Army statement reads.
Army said the incident was investigated, following which it was established that the forces were “forced” to open the fire.
“It is established that the security forces were forced to open cautionary fire to prevent any further injury, loss or damage to personnel, weapons equipment and other government property in which two persons resorting to stone pelting were injured,” Army said.
· PROTECT HUMAN RIGHTS DURING ANTI-MILITANT OPS: DGP 
March 12: Director General of Jammu and Kashmir Police K Rajendra Kumar on Saturday said “special care” should be taken to ensure that human rights are not violated during anti-militant operations and stressed on better synergy among law enforcing agencies to ensure safety and security of people.
“While dealing with the (law and order) situations, the police should take special care of human rights and every effort, precaution should be taken to avoid collateral damage,” Kumar said while chairing a high-level meeting here. This came after the army had sent a warning on protests during encounters.
 The meeting, attended by senior police, paramilitary and intelligence officers, was convened to take stock of the law and order situation in the Valley, an official spokesman said. Emphasising on adoption of an “effective strategy” to check “anti-national” elements, the police chief said while conducting operations it should be ensured that common people are not inconvenienced.
 Kumar called for strengthening of the intelligence grid and stressed on greater coordination among different law enforcing agencies. The DGP said better policing and people’s cooperation are mandatory to achieve desired results.
 The spokesman said the meeting also discussed various issues like the annual Amarnath pilgrimage which is scheduled to commence on July 2 and proposed local bodies elections in the state.



	DATE 
	ARMED FORCES
	MILITANTS
	CIVILIANS

	March 01
	-
	-
	-

	March 02
	-
	-
	-

	March 03
	-
	4
	-

	March 04
	-
	-
	-

	March 05
	-
	-
	-

	March 06
	-
	1
	-

	March 07
	-
	-
	-

	March 08
	-
	-
	-

	March 09
	-
	2
	-

	March 10
	-
	-
	-

	March 11
	-
	-
	-

	March 12
	-
	-
	-

	March 13
	-
	-
	-

	March 14
	-
	-
	-

	March 15
	-
	-
	-

	March 16
	-
	-
	-

	March 17
	-
	-
	-

	March 18
	-
	2
	-

	March 19
	-
	-
	-

	March 20
	-
	-
	-

	March 21
	-
	-
	-

	March 22
	-
	-
	-

	March 23
	-
	-
	-

	March 24
	-
	-
	-

	March 25
	1
	-
	-

	March 26
	
	
	

	March 27
	-
	-
	-

	March 28
	-
	-
	-

	March 29
	-
	-
	-

	March 30
	-
	-
	1

	March 31
	-
	-
	-

	TOTAL 
	1
	9
	1

	IN TOTO
	11 KILLINGS 




CHRONOLOGY OF INCIDENTS
March 01: No incident of violence reported. 
March 02: No incident of violence reported 
March 03: Three Hizbul Mujahideen militants were killed in an encounter with army in Tral. The slain militants all locals were identified as Ishaq Ahmad Parray of Laribal, Asif Ali Mir alias Chotu of Dadsara and Ashiq Hussain of Chursoo, Awantipora. In another encounter army claimed it had killed an unidentified militant in Keran sector. In the same encounter, army claimed, two of its men suffered injuries.   
March 04: Tral observed shut down to mourn the killings of three militants killed on March 3.
March 05: Tral observed shut down to mourn the killings of three militants killed on March 3.
March 06: A Hizbul Mujahideen (HM) militant was killed and an army man was injured during a gunfight in Buchroo village of Kulgam in south Kashmir. The slain militant has been identified as Dawood Ahmad Sheikh of Qaimoh, Kulgam.
March 07: At least seven person and few policemen were injured in clashes in Kulgam where a local militant was killed in an encounter with army on March 6. 
March 08: Two civilians were injured in army firing in Ashuqam area of south Kashmir. The injured were identified as Javaid Ahmad Wani, 23, and Amir Ahmad Sheikh, 21. The Deputy Commissioner ordrred magisterial probe into the incident.  
March 09: Two LET militants, police claimed, of foreign origin, were killed in an encounter in a plant nursery in Awantipora. One of the slain militant police identified as Abu Usaka. In another incident militants managed to gave slip to the army in Wanihama, Ganderbal. However, the locals alleged that civilians were used as human shield during search operation.  
March 10: Shut down in Pulwama and Kulgam area continued to mourn the killings of militants killed during encounter with army. 
March 11: Militants attacked a CRPF bunker with a hand grenade in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district. However, the explosive missed the aimed target an exploded on road without causing any damage. 
March 12: No incident of violence reported.
March 13: Gunmen, who police claimed were militants, shot at a man and injured a man at Kareemaabad, Pulwama. The injured was identified as Jaan Mohammad Bhat who received bullets in his legs. 
March 14: No incident of violence reported.
March 15: No incident of violence reported.
March 16: No incident of violence reported. 
March 17: No incident of violence reported.
March 18: Two LET unidentified militants, police claimed of foreigner, were killed in an encounter with army in Handwara area of north Kashmiri’s Kupwara district. 
March 19: A 27-year-old youth has been shot at in his legs in Murran Chowk in Pulwams district by unknown gunmen. The injured was identified as Mudasir Ahmad Wani of Malikpora, Pulwama. 
March 20: No incident of violence reported.
March 21: No incident of violence reported. 
March 22: No incident of violence reported.
March 23: No incident of violence reported.
March 24: No incident of violence reported.
March 25: An army trooper committed suicide by shooting himself dead with his service rifle at his company headquarters Kanzalwal village of in north Kashmir’s Bandipora. The soldier was identified as Kuldeep Singh of 13 SIKH regiment.
March 26: Two soldiers and a civilian were injured in a grenade explosion hurled by suspected militants in Bijbehara. Hizbul Mujahideen owns responsibility of the attack, as per media reports.     
[bookmark: _GoBack]March 27: No incident of violence reported.
March 28: No incident of violence reported.
March 29: No incident of violence reported.
March 30: Unknown gunmen shot dead a widow at Noorpora, Tral area of Awantipora in south Kashmir’s Pulwama district, according to the police. 50-year old Hameeda Begum, wife of late Ghulam Hasan Dar, resident of Noorpora, was shot at her residence at around 7.45 pm, a police officer told media. She was alone in the house when the gunmen sprayed bullets on her before escaping from the scene.
March 31: No incident of violence reported.
